NRC INSPECTION MANUAL PI VB

MANUAL CHAPTER 0303

| TEM REPORTI NG

0303-01 PURPOSE

01.01 To establ i sh t he obj ecti ves, responsibilities,
requi renments, and procedures for the use and mai nt enance of the
Item Reporting System (IR).

01.02 To provide instructions for the conpl etion, handling and
entering of IR data.

0303-02 BACKGROUND

02.01 IR was originally devel oped as an NRR tool for tracking
and managi ng the followup of NRR- and NMSS-identified itens at
licensed facilities (commercial reactors, nonpower reactors, and
materials and fuel cycle facilities) and at NRR vendor facilities.
|Rinteracts with the I nspection Planning System(IP); both IR and
| P are conponents of the Reactor Program System (RPS). I P
facilitates the developnment of inspection plans at conmerci al
reactors. IR captures the results of all inspections and tracks
the followup of itenms through conpletion. IR also tracks the
conpl etion status of inspection procedures by inspection report
nunber and contains the data from which the Plant |ssues Mtrix
(PIM is generated. IRis being nodifiedto capture data fromNVSS
facilities.

02. 02 IR incorporates and replaces the functions of the
| nspection Followup System (I FS) and the 766 System which were
devel oped to capture, maintain, and report basic inspection data
and enforcenent-related findings resulting from inspections of
comrer ci al power reactors, nonpower reactors, vendors, and nateri al
and fuel facilities. |FS added the capability to track docket-
relateditens that requiredfoll ow up, includinginspection-rel ated
open itens, 10 CFR Part 21 reports, and |licensee event reports

(LERs). IFS also could track items not related to dockets,
including admnistrative itens identified by the regional or
headquarters offices. Unlike its predecessor systens, IR is

progranmed on a client server platformthat allows the direct entry
of data into the systemby site, regional office, or headquarters
personnel; that is, the system does not require the use of data
entry forns or data input personnel.
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02. 03 The IR Users Guide provides detailed information on
entering data, reviewing information, conputer screens, and
creating and printing reports, including the PIM Copies of the IR
Users Cuide are available fromthe Informtion Managenent Branch
(PIMB) in NRR and the RPS regional representatives.

0303-03 PCLI CY AND OBJECTI VES

03.01 Itemrecords of all inspections conducted at comrerci al
power reactors, nonpower reactors, vendors, and material s and f uel
cycle facilities will be entered in IR In addition, all cited

vi ol ati ons, non-cited viol ations, devi ati ons, escal at ed enf or cenent
i tens, non-conformance, unresol ved itens and i nspection fol |l ow up
itenms will be tracked in IR The entry of other open itens,
i ncludi ng LERs and Part 21 itens, i s encouraged, although inclusion
of these itens in IR is optional

03. 02 IR data will also be used by the program offices and
regional offices to answer questions that the NRC receives from
Congress, the Comm ssion, state officials, interveners, and ot her
interested parties.

03. 03 The data entered into IR nust be as conpl ete, accurate,
and tinely as possible. Achieving data accuracy and tineliness
will be a shared responsibility of the regional and headquarters
of fices.

0303- 04 DEFI NI TI ONS

04.01 Qoen item A matter that requires further inspection.
The reason for requiring further inspection may be that the nmatter
has been identified as a nonconpliance, unresolved item or
i censee event report.

04. 02 Violation (VIQ). The failure to conply with a legally
bi nding regulatory requirenent, such as a statute, regulation
order, license condition, or technical specification.

04. 03 Escal ated Enforcenent Item(EElI). A Notice of Violation
for any Severity Level I, Il, or Ill violation (or problen), or a
civil penalty or order based on a violation.

04. 04 Devi ation (DEV). A licensee's failure to satisfy a
regul atory commtnent. (This does not apply to operatingreactors.)

04.05 Non-Cited Violation (NCV). Aviolation for which the staff
chooses to exercise discretion and refrain fromissuing a 10 CFR
Part 2.201 Notice of Violation

04. 06 Nonconf ormance (NON). Avendor's or certificate holder's
failure to neet a contract requirenment related to NRC activities
(e.g., 10 CFR Part 50, Appendix B), where the NRC has not placed
the requirenent directly on the vendor or certificate hol der.
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04. 07 Unresolved Item (URI). A matter about which nore
information is required to determ ne whet her the i ssue in question
is an acceptable item a deviation, a nonconformance, or a
vi ol ation.

04. 08 Enforcenent Discretion Letter (EDL). A matter in which
the Ofice of Enforcenment has determned to apply enforcenent
discretion in accordance with Section VII.B.2-6 of the NRC
Enf orcenent Policy.

0303-05 RESPONSI BI LI TI ES AND AUTHORI Tl ES
05.01 Program Ofices

a. Ensurethat IRis inplenented consistently with NRR and NVSS
office policies, prograns, and guidance for |icensee and
vendor facility I nspecti ons, enf or cenent program
i npl ement ati on, and foll owup of issues.

b. Assure the accuracy and tineliness of the data in IR
c. Control access to the systemfor programoffice users.

d. The Informati on Managenment Branch (PIMB) in the Ofice of
Nucl ear Reactor Regulation is responsible for resolving
i npl enent ati on probl ens; standardi zi ng procedures, codes, and
operating policies; prioritizing system enhancenents;
updating and issuing the IR Users Guide; and maintaining
consi stency between IR and the Enforcenent Action Tracking
Syst em ( EATS).

e. For power reactor inspections conducted by headquarters
offices, ensure conpleted IR data entry information is
forwarded to the appropriate regional office for subsequent
entry of inspection report data and any open itens.

f.  For nonpower and vendor inspections, ensure conpl eted records
of all itenms are entered into IR

05.02 Regional Ofices

a. Ensure the tinely and accurate entry of IR data for all NRC
i nspections of Iicensees for which the regionis responsible.

b. Ensure effective managenent of open itens tracked in IR in
accordance wi th regi onal policies, procedures, and practi ces.

c. Ensure conplete and accurate entry of enforcenent-rel ated
open itenms including notices of violation, non-cited
vi ol ati ons, notices of deviation, and escal ated enf or cenent
i tens.
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d. Control access to the system by regional office users.

0303-06  CGENERAL REQUI REMENTS AND PROCEDURES

06. 01 Data Inteqgrity. Regional and headquarters offices are
responsi ble for ensuring the conpleteness and accuracy of data
tracked in IR Regional offices shall ensure tinely closure of
open power reactor itenms in accordance with established regi onal
instructions. NRRis responsible for the data quality of reactor
vendor and nonpower reactor itens, while NVSS is responsible for
itens related to fuel cycle facilities and materi al s.

06. 02 Dat a | nput

a. The direct entry of data in IR by NRC staff is the preferred
vehicle for entering datainto IR |If an IR data entry form
i s used, it should docunent the conpl eti on of each i nspecti on
report and associated cited VIGOs, NCVs, EEls, URIs, |IFls,
DEVs, EDLs, and NONs. (Other open itenms may be included at
the option of the regional office).

b. For a teami nspection conpl et ed by a headquarters office (but
not for vendor inspections), disposition of the teams
fi ndi ngs may be determ ned by t he cogni zant regi onal division
based on input from the headquarters team The cogni zant
regional division will prepare the required data input.

C. NCvs and EDLs should be opened and closed in the sane
i nspection report if no other followup is intended.

06. 03 | nspection |Item Nunbering System For reactor, vendor,
and materials i nspections, a sequence nunber is required for each
itemidentifiedinthe inspectionreport. The systemfor nunbering
itens in inspection reports shall be as follows:

a. Each VIO NCv, EElI, EDL, DEV, URI, NON, and other open itens
identified in an inspection report will be nunbered. The
nunber will provide positive identification of itens to be
followed up and closed in future inspections.

For all licensed facilities, the nunber for open itens
identified in an inspection report will consist of the type
of item followed by the last three digits of the docket
nunber, a "/", the inspection report nunber, a "-", and a
sequence nunber (e.g., VIO 05000346/1997001-01).

b. The sequence nunber will start with 01 at the begi nning of
the report for the first item identified. Each new item
identified on subsequent pages w ||l be nunbered i n sequence,
regardl ess of type, In areport covering only one unit, each
itemw || be tracked separately. Itens combn to two or nore
units will have the sanme sequence nunber for each unit; the
docket nunber and the associated inspection report nunber
Wi Il distinguish the unit to which the openitemapplies. A
sequence nunber nmay never be reused, even for itens of
di fferent units.
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The fol |l owm ng are exanpl es of proper nunbering for single and
dual unit sites:

| TEM DOCKET REPORT S E O U E N C E
REMARKS
Single Unit Site:
1st VI O 05000346 1 9 9 1 0 0 1
01
1st URI 05000346 1991001 02
2nd VI O 05000346 1991001 03
1st DEV 05000346 1991001 04
Dual Unit Site:
1st URI 05000295 1991002 011st unit 1
2nd URI 05000304 1991002 021st unit 2
1st DEV 05000295 1991002 O3both units
05000304 1991002 03
2nd DEV 05000295 1991002 04
1st VI O 05000295 1991002 0 5
both units
05000304 1991002 05

c. URIsthat are later determned to be VIOs will be given a new
nunber based upon the current inspection report. The old
itemw ||l be closed in the inspection report.

06. 04 Title Field Entry. Describe the open item in 80
characters or less. This entry will also appear in the PIMas the
"Title."

06. 05 Text Field Entry. For non-enforcenent itens, the text
field may be used for additional pertinent information that they
did not include inthe title field. For a VIO, NCV, EEl, EDL, DEV,
or NON, they should nmake an entry in the text field. The text
shoul d i ncl ude the pertinent requi renent and a conci se (3-5 |ines)
summary of the violation, deviation, or nonconfornance. The
followi ng are exanpl es of acceptable text field entries:

a. Contrary to TS 3.6.6.1 on January 1, 1992, with one drywell
and suppression chanber hydrogen conbiner having been
i noperabl e for nore than 30 days, the unit was not placed in
Hot Shutdown within the next 12 hours.

b. Contrary to 10 CFR 50.59(a) on May 1, 1991, the licensee
changed the facility as described in the FSAR w thout
eval uating the change. Specifically, the service water
system di scharge, which as stated in Section 10.6.5 of the
FSAR, normally enpties into the circul ating water di scharge
structure, was diverted permanently to the cooling tower
basi n.

06. 06 Data Entry. In general, data may be entered by the
resident office assistant for that site's IR records and itens.
However, it is the responsibility of the region to determ ne how
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and by whom itens will be created, records will be updated, data

integrity will be assured, and the PIMw || be generated

06. 07 EElIs and the IR Interface Wth the Enforcenent Action
Tracking System (EATS). EATS does not share data with IR
however, information can be correlated between the two systens

t hrough the Enforcenent Action (EA) Nunber. EEls serve as place
holders in IRuntil a final decisionis reached on the appropriate
enforcenent action for the issues. EElI s can be disposed of by
regi onal and headquarters enforcenent staff as foll ows:

a. EEls are created in IR by regional staff with an item status
of "0" (open). The EA nunber, assigned by the Ofice of
Enforcenent (OE), should be entered. The sane EA nunber is
used by CE in EATS.

b. OEreviews theitens. |f OE and the regi on determ ne that an
itemis not a violation, then the regional staff will change
the status for the <corresponding EEl in IR to "W
(withdrawn). Should the region elect to continue to follow
up on the issue, a newitemwth the appropriate type code
nmust be opened.

c. If OE and the region determne that itens are violations,
when they issue the notice of violation the regional staff
W ll create newitens in |Rusing the identification nunbers
in the notice and assign an itemtype of "VIO " The status
of the original EEIs in IR should be changed to "C" (cl osed),
and both the original EElIs and new VI Gs shoul d reference the
EA nunber originally assigned.

d. For an EEl to which enforcenent discretion is applied, the
EElI should be closed with the opening of an EDL. The EDL
woul d be sinultaneously closed if no follow up is intended.

06. 08 Procedure Status. The report lead for each inspection
report is responsible for ensuring that the status of each
procedure used inthe inspectionis enteredinlRat the conpletion
of the inspection. The screen for Procedure Status can be found
under the Reports Tab of IR  The regional offices will devel op
busi ness rules to acconplish this task.

06. 09 Plant |ssues Matrix (PIM. Selection of specific item
types automatically defaults to the PIM these itens are as
fol |l ows: Escal ated Enforcenent Item Non-Cited Violation,

Unresol ved | ssue, Violation, Licensing |ssue, and O her. However,
IRis flexible to permt changes to the default selection. Under
the Text Tab, the user wll enter text for the PIM from the
Executive Summary of the inspection report and a di scussi on of the
significance of the item Both the description and the
significance statenents should be short and be able to stand
al one. In the ideal instance, the user wll copy and paste
directly fromthe i nspection report’s Executive Summary; however,
the application does allow the nodification of text from the
Executive Summary. Users are cautioned not to extensively nodify
text fromthe inspectionreport, thereby reducingtraceability from
the PIM back to the inspection report.
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The PIM report is produced by selecting the Reports Tab and
selecting the PIMreport. The user can select the site, the type
of item (or all itens), a date range, and can sort the data by
Functional Area, Dates, Type, or Tenpl ate Code; the default sort is
by Primary Functional Area.

06. 10 Security Considerations

a. Systemaccess shall be controlled viathe RPS/ Security Access
System security system to ensure that entry and update
capabilities are restricted only to authorized personnel.

b. The IR database also contains pre-decisional information
relating to evaluations of EElIs. Systemconfidentiality is
necessary to prevent i nappropriate disclosure of this type of
i nformati on. Provisions for controlling access to
information found in the | R database are found i n The Privacy
Act of 1974, 5 USC 552a, and in NRC s regulations found in
10 CFR Part 9.

c. Proprietary data, security information, and other sensitive
or sensitive unclassified informati on should, to the extent

possi bl e, be excluded fromthe IR database. Reference to an
allegation or an alleger is to be strictly avoi ded.

END
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